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THCOMAS R. FALLON

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS
EASTERN DIVISION
TIMELINES, INC.,
Plaintiff,
-vs- Case No. 11-CV-06867
FACERBOOK, INC.,

Defendant.

Examination of THOMAS R. FALLON, taken at
the instance of the Defendant, under and pursﬁant to the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, before |
JESSICA R. WAACK, Certified Realtime Reporter, Registered
Diplomate Reporter, Certified'Shorthand Reporter and
Notary Public in and for the State of Wisconsin, at
735 North Water Street, Milwaukee, Wisconsin, on Tuesday,

September 25, 2012, commencing at 1:29 p.m. and concluding

Job No. 53573

B P R A R A S T

TSG Reporting - Worldwide  877-702-9580




Page 23

1 THOMAS R, FALILON

2 said, is that you guys? BAnd he said, no, it's

3 - not.

4 Q But you hadn't -- okay. Sorry. 8Strike that.

5 What do you mean by, "Is that you guys?"
6 You just asked him, "Is that you guys?"

7 A Yeah, he had talked to me previously about this

8 new thing that he had called Timelines. Sometime
9 after six months, three months, whatever it was,
10 Facebook coming out with something called

11 . Timelines. And I said, hey, they're using your
12 thing. Did you guys hook up with Facebook? And
13 he said no.

14 Q And what do you mean by, "Did you guys hoock up

15 with Facebook?"

16 A I thought maybe they sold their service to

L7 Facebook.

18 Q And then other than Mr . Armour saying no, did he
13 have any response?

20 A I'm sure he did, yes. I don't recall what it was.
21 But he was very emphat ic gaying it wasn 't him, and
22 he wasn't happy about it.

23 Q Did he express to you why he wasn't happy about

24 it?

25 A No. I had assumptions on my part, but, no, he
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Page 30 |
THOMAS R. FALLON :
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
)} ss:

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE }

T, JESSICA R. WAACK, a Certified
Realtime Reporter, Registered Diplomate Reporter,
Certified Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and
for the State of Wisconsin, do hereby certify that the
above examination of THOMAS R. FALLON was recorded by
me on September 25, 2012, and reduced to writing under
my personal direction.

I further certify that I am not a
relative or employee or attorney or coﬁnsel of any of
the ?arties, or a relative or employvee of such attorney
or counsel, or financially interested directly or
indirectly in this action.

Tn witness whereof I have hereunder set
my hand and affixed my seal of office at Milwaukee,

Wisconsin, on September 26, 2012.

Notary Public

Tn and for the State of Wisconsin

My Commiggion Expires: September 1, 2013,

TSG Reporting - Worldwide  877-702-9580
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ann'F%eebaek{ﬁﬁéﬁxﬁ@@ﬁcaﬁsn5%f 444ozy@ﬁa€ebmﬂ«ﬂaﬂconﬂ
Senk: Saturday, March 03, 2012 148 AM

Yar Brian Hand

Subject: Tayyab Tanvir shared a fink op. Timelings's Wall.

" Tayyab shared a link on Tinvelines’s Wall,

timeling sucks

wall Phatz:as‘ :

EhRnG w@iloom: 3%’* g GOy Y warg 1 regebe fhant evisdd Ron Palelwek i the Rawe, slesse dick: ungulseribe.
?-'acé:?\f"»:s% e, ﬁ%:‘?,rz“?w* i.‘&,;;a*’wd%t ﬁu- PO B0 10005 Pale Alko 8 $4302

To000273



From: Facebook [mailto: ngtification+{_444ozy@facebookmail.com]
Sent: Saturday, March 03, 2017 5:58 AM

Tos Brian Hand

Subjech Midou Belhadj posted on Thmelines's. Wall

2oy gl b Bl wbiandl ol gt whs”

b

Replytoths € Wioomeent on ths Wall past

Tris MRS aS Pk to i oy, Wyme dlond wark fo réciive tiens amalls from Rersbonltin e
At please olich; Slneing o )
Fatrhond . Mtention: Seperinent H5 PO B 18 el Ako (B 9405

T8000274



§rom: Facebook [malito:notification+f._d44ozy@facebookmal.com]
Sent: Saturday, March 03, 2012 B:05 AM '

Tor Brian Hand B
Subject: Steven Marketolf posted on Timelines's Wall

Steven Marketoff : el w
"Remove this timeline from actount This is time wasting and useless oriy overioacing the page without point
.. T 07 wanna 988 and § dor't want othars to see what happen with mi or with my frierds fram birthday
6ill newy, TF 1 need to do this Twill speak with them L. This Is viclation with the malnndes. ... Remova i ”

Reply o iz armall bo comment on this Wl pogt

il ot 16 voy gt wark 1o rsctive ese shulle from Fackboak o the

TFE rhatnage Was el to Minnal
futrs, pheese clok uninibscilie
Carsbody, e, BEeniy Densrinerd 15 PO Box LODRE PRl Al Oa $330%

ToD00275



me Fa%:ebcok {maittotnatification 7. Mozy@facebumaﬁ,com}
Senty Frday, PFebrumy 24, 2012 9153 AM

To: Brian Hand
Subject: Edward Manue! Arias posted on Timelines's Wall

Edward Manuel Asias
oy e c}ﬁ:a el Fagabnok aemﬁa"

Riephy Yo fiis ariisl to corgnant o this Wall gst;

Thiv meshare Wit e to Bilsnehindan i
Fog pee o biios your wnal Edﬁr@% m&d Frar Higed %g@:ﬁ&a}rﬁ, ;ﬁ@vs» s g
Faceniok, TFe, Al Shpararing 315000 Boie 10005 Palo ado A Gy

T0000276



From: Facebosk [thailto:notification+f: 444azy@fatabookmail.com]

Sent: Thursday, February 23, 2012 11:39 AM
Foi Brian Hand
Subject: Anna Deane posted on Timelines's Wall

Anna Deane g9
“how dod gm this eifcrfmy fawbocﬁu: has:sorewel eveygtmg up

R&;’mly to this arpall 4o comimeit of this Wall post.

This nesisans e st Brlaneh
fisare o bpwd L e sdirms Fr Al
Fandhook, Tot: Atbraddy Dioarmenl 1S R0y LS B ia A O8 54303

: ?;f ot dotfL wans by Heaie ?:.‘“f%:’: amads o Packbooilin the
LigaEstinng, plase oicke i

10000277



B:egi‘_ forwarded message:

From: Mr Andrew Stanley Robinson <grobins3@eardner-webb edu>
Dm:e‘ Deeemher 2] 2301 iE l i 42D .AM {?ST

Timelinie;, T am having trouble with the new account fayout on facebook. How can Ttake Hmeline of my profile, and ge back
to the old Beebiosk layout? Thanksforthe hielp

TCO00282



et T
Eromy: Pami Cole:
Date: Thursday, September 22, 2011
Sulbsect: Timelie _

To: Geoff Buesing <geofi@usofl

Hey Geoff
Saw: that Pacebook is using timeline snow: I this your timelines?
How are you and Bepea dolag anyway?

Bam

TGCOU298



Frﬂzm. 31m MeLeaz*s [mas §tﬁ harmamﬁepywr t&r@gmauimm}
Sent: Saturday, October 01, 2011 5345 PM

To: trignchant@gmail.com

Subject: F8 Developats Conference 2011

Just curious if this is your Timelines? | haven't firished watching past Andy from SNL.

Stephen is coming in for Thanksgiving, btw
J

https /iR faceboak com/

70800289



Frofii: Facebook [maiitongtification +1_#40sy @
Senk: Sundsy, March 18,2087 1804 A
To: St Hand. -

Subject: Al Sottay posted on Thmislines's Wal

ors Thuilines's Wall
bttt Bt aat.piex e me soluiont.....”

g ot - L

Reply o this mmall B oot ot Wal post.

G b b Sk e oF

T0000448



Ao

3 keviail.com]

From: Facebook [mailtosnotification-+{_4440zy@ifaceboo
Sent: Monday, March 26, 2012 12:34 PM

o Brian Hand _

Subijeck Evan Manzanares postéd en Timelines's Wall

Ko do et 3 timefing:
*

Reiply 1o tHS Bhiall 4o cérmment on T Wall post,

TO000508



Begin forgarded message:

Raphy to this omdl & communit-on s Wall post.

This massspa wos sert to hianebandBomaloem. IF you dor't wark to rebeive these emiils from Facsboolin due
fum e, ez clic swebseribe:

s, I, Siterfion: Desriiment A1E P B $000% Palo Al A 94555

TOO0G5C9



?s—m Facebeok [maﬂte*mbﬁcatmﬁ 4ad0ry@tacebookmall. coml
Sent: Sunday, March 11, 2012 11:46 PM

Foy Brian Hand

Subject: Loule Rodriguez posted on Timatines's Wall

(@ touieRadrigues ; ,
- *1 hyee this, shupid Simeling design. 106 tessy, disarganized, aré harder to read thaprthe classic, Provide the
:Gpﬁontakeeptb&eﬁa“ i ®

Tres pRessae wers st to Biansheei@oinadan, 7 you ot et 1 peesive thess srais froem Fasebookdn the

Rren, Foese Chik smm
facobiok, Tre, Erteriiory Dersri 945 7.0 Box TODDT PR Alle C& 94307

o

TOOO0E10



¥rom: Facebook fmailternotification+§_444ozy@facebookmail.com]
Sent: Saturday, March 24, 2012 5:30 AM

To: Brian Hand _

Subjact: [Timelines] New message from Sanguine Soma

Eonersitin e

B cgit & | E:ngEn ME 28
Lest e cani i gt mehos?

tapeline?

[y S DN A Y o e e A Yo s ey Fiien Sy e WU i g bt

ekl - Peply {0 this emal fe message Sanguine Somia.

Y P st

TOOCOS51



From: Gladys Alvarade Imaﬁtmgia@ys a&&mdﬁ@ﬁ@gmaﬁﬁ&m}
S&ﬁt: Satu releby, Ag}r%% 28, 2&12 3 36 M

COK PATHOUT TMELINE

SAHe2

PLEASE HELP | LIKE MY OLF FACE BOOK

TOO0038S



wo&d@fﬁi fc}r some bul every one 18
at, just et me have a choice. 1

o me options,

S/HI0AZ
TO000888



Redacted

To00O88T




Fropm Faschook Traitornctifieation+{_ 44402y @facebicokmal com]
Sent: Saurday, March 31, 20122:55 &AM '
To: Brign Hand _
Subjech Cody Wiliam Skén posted on Timeliness Wall

Cody Willism Skan posted on TimeHnes's Wall
‘i Fow e o ey facsbnk '

e S ALY Geh 8 e T

¥ 40 cormmise ar s Wall post

1212
TCO00888



o Thaelines's yeull
3 e e, Sangie ip e pesser.

sl e el 40 Chmrienton 2his Wl st

512012
TO0G0889



Fromi Facsbook [alitolactification +1_S4%0ey@ifacebookmail.com]
Sent: Sundsy, Aprit 01, 2012 10:35 AM

Tos Brian Hand _
Subject: Muhammad Azamuddin posted on Timelines's Wait

/172012
TOO00B30



—————— Originai Message-—- :

From: cent2005best@myogera.com fmailteicent2005best@myoperd.com}
Sent; Wednesday, January 23, 2013 12:51 AM

To: feadbatk@timelines.com :

Subject: unblock my timeline from my face book account.

Heflo,
For three months mow, your timeline has block my attount, after they ask me to submit verification to verified my
riame...which i did......for more than three mpnths now....if i legin timeling will bring a page that form has being

submitted....and | cant access my account ...J want it unblotked roday...

innocent Ikhayere

cent2O0sbest@myopera.com

0001477
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Hundreds Register for New Facebook Website { The Harvard Crimson Page | of 5

SEARCH

NEWS  OPINION  MACAZINE  SPORTS  ARTS  MEDIA FLYBY

ARCUT US ADVERTISING SUBSCRIBE (LASSIFIEDS 108 BOARD CAMBRIUDGE, MA WEATHER: 39F

Hundreds Register for New Facebook
Website

Facemash creator seeks new reputation with latest online project
By ALAN [ TABAK, CRIMSON STAFF WRITER
February 09, 2004

81 COMMENTS BSEMAIL EPRINT Like 3.5k

When Mark E. Zuckerberg *06 grew impatient with the creation of an official universal Harvard
facebook, he decided to take matters into his own hands.

After about a week of coding, Zuckerberg launched thefacebook.com last Wednesday afternoon.
The website combines elements of a standard House face book with extensive profile features that

allow students to search for others in their courses, social organizations and Houses.

“Everyone’s been talking a lot about a universal face book within Harvard,” Zuckerberg said. “I
think it’s kind of silly that it would take the University a couple of years to get around to it. I can
do it better than they can, and T can do it in a week.”

As of yesterday afternoon, Zuckerberg said over 650 students had registered use
thefacebook.com. He said that he anticipated that 900 students would have joined the site by this

morning,.

<

I'm pretty happy with the amount of people that have been to it so far,” he said. “The nature of
the site is that each user’s experience improves if they can get their friends to join it.”

But Director of Residential Computing Kevin S. Davis '98 said that the creation of a Harvard
facebook was not as far off as Zuckerberg predicted.

“There is a project internally with computer services to create a facebook,” Davis said. “We've
been in touch with the Undergraduate Council, and this is a very high priority for the College. We
have every intention of completing the facebook by the end of the spring semester.”

http://www.thecrimson.com/article/2004/2/9/hundreds-register-for-new-facebook-website/  2/12/2013



Hundreds Register for New Facebook Website | The Harvard Crimson Page 2 of 5

Davis said that the principle complication with the creation of an official facebook was figuring
out how to design an interface so that directory information could not easily be compiled without

authorization.

Zuckerberg’s site allows people with Harvard e-mail addresses to upload their pictures and
personal and academic information. Just as with the popular website Friendster, which
Zuckerberg said was a model for his new website, members can search for people according to

their interests and can create an online network of friends.

Lisa H. Feigenbaum ’04 said that she joined thefacebook.com because it provided an open
alternative to the password-protected House facebooks.

“If there was a situation where you needed to identify someone for an organization or a meeting,
it would be very helpful,” she said.

Zuckerberg said that the most innovative feature of the site is that people can search for other
students in their classes so that they can branch out to form friendships and study groups.

“If you're in a class where you don’t vknow anyone and want to ask somebody for help, thisis a
way to find out the names of people in that class,” said thefacebook.com user Roberto C. Acosta
'05.

Zuckerberg said that the extensive search capabilities are restricted by a myriad of privacy

options for members who do not want everyone to be able to look up their information.

“There are pretty intensive privacy options,” he said. “You can limit who can see your
information, if you only want current students to see your information, or people in your year, in
your house, in your classes. You can limit a search so that only a friend or a friend of a friend can
look you up. People have very good control over who can see their information.”

Zuckerberg said that he hoped the privacy options would help to restore his reputation following

student outrage over facemash.com, a website he created in the fall semester.

Using without permission photos from House facebooks, Facemash juxtaposed the pictures of
two random Harvard undergraduates and asked users to judge their physical attractiveness. The
website drew the ire of students and administrators alike, and Zuckerberg shut it down within
days of the initial launch.

In addition to the privacy options, Zuckerberg added security features to thefacebook.com that he
said will ensure that only the owner of a particular Harvard e-mail account can upload

information to the website.

http://www.thecrimson.com/article/2004/2/9/hundreds-register-for-new-facebook-website/  2/12/2013



Hundreds Register for New Facebook Website | The IHarvard Crimson Page 3 of 5

When a person registers to join thefacebook.com, a program checks to make sure that the name
of the prospective member matches up with the entered e-mail address. Next, a confirmation
message is sent to the e-mail account, and the account is finally activated if and when the owner
of the account clicks on an encrypted link back to thefacebook.com.

Zuckerberg said that he was also careful to avoid the potential copyright infringement charges
that landed him before the Administrative Board after the creation of Facemash.

“Facemash was a joke, it was funny, but at its root it had its problems—not only the idea, but the
implementation. It was distributing materials that were Harvard’s. I was very careful with
[thefacebook.com] to make sure that people don’t upload copyrighted material,” he said.

Davis said that thefacebook.com is not necessarily in violation of any Harvard rules.

“There’s nothing inherently wrong with a third party site on which students choose to create a
personal network,” Davis said. “If there was a third party site on which students uploaded course
syllabi or videos, that could potentially become a property issue with the University.”

Zuckerburg said thefacebook.com has no such capabilities and does not violate University rules.

While Zuckerberg promised that thefacebook.com would boast new features by the end of the

week, he said that he did not create the website with the intention of generating revenue.

“P'm not going to sell anybody’s e-mail address,” he said. “At one point I thought about making
the website so that you could upload a resume too, and for a fee companies could search for
Harvard job applicants. But 1 don’t want to touch that. It would make everything more serious

and less fun.”

—Staff writer Alan J. Tabak can be reached at tabak@fas.harvard.edu.

81 comments Y A

Lasve & massags..

Diggussion - Community Share &%

anon. 3 yaars ago
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

In the matter of Application Serial No. 76/658,836
Filed on April 20, 2006

For the mark FACEMAITL

Published in the Gfficial Gazette on May 15, 2007

Facebook, Inc., Opposition No.:

Cpposer,
NOTICE OF OPPOSITION

Callsource, Inc.,

Applicant.

Opposer Facebook, Inc. ("Opposer” or "Facebook"), a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, believes that it will be damaged by registration of the
mark shown in Application Serial No. 76/658,836 and hereby opposes that application, alleging |
as grounds for its opposition that:

1. Opposer has obtained the necessary extensions of time in which to oppose the
challenged trademark foilgw'uﬁg publication on May 15, 2007 in tbe Official Gazette.

2, As is evidenced by the publication of the FACEMAIL mark in the May 15, 2007
Official Gozetiz, Applicant Callsource, Inc. {“Applicant”) seeks to register the mark FACEMAIL '
(the “Proposed Mark”) as a trademark in International Class 38 for “communication services,
namely, delivering prerecorded messages combining video and andio over a global
communications network and communjcatién"sewices, namely, electroﬁic trapsmission of live
messages combining video and audio over a global communications network.” Applicant is,
upcn information and belief, a California Corporation having its principal place of business at
31380 Qak Crest Drive, Westlake Village, CA 91361. Applicant has filed on an mtent-te-use

basis.



3. Starting more than three years age, and continuously since then, the FACEBOOK
trade name and trademark have been used in interstate and international commerce in comnection
with a wide range of goods and services, including but not limited to, “providing online chat
rooms for registered users for transmission of messages concermning céllegiate life, ¢lassifieds,
virtual community and secial networking” in ("lass 38 and “providing an online directory
information service featuring information regarding, and in the nature of, collegiate life,
classifieds, virtual community and social networking” in Class 35, We refer to the foregoing
services collectively as “the FACEBOCK Services.”

4. All of the FACEBOOK Services have been or are being advertised, i)romoted,
marketed, offered, and rendered in connection with Opposer’s well known FACEBGOK name,
trademarks and service marks. We refer to this family of trademarks and service marks znd to
Opposer’s trade name collectively as the “FACERBOOK Name and Marks.”

5. The FACEBOOK Name and Marks have been continuously and widely used,
advertised, promoted, marketed, offered and rendered in connection with the FACEBCOK
Services for at least 3 years, The well-known use of the FACEBCOK mark in commerce, in
connection with various of the FACEBOOK Services, began at least as early as 2004, and has
been contimous and uninterrupted ever since then.

6. The FACEBOOK Name and Marks have been the subject of extensive advertising
campaigns and tﬁe content of endless arficles in technology and general media publications over
the past 3 years. These advertisements and print publications have been distributed to major
markets throughout the world.

7. The level of fame and c-onsumef recognition of the FACEBOOK Namé and
Marks cannot be disputed. Opposer currently has over 40 million active users, and currently
processes 200,000 new registrations for Opposer’s services per day. Opposer’s website,
<Facebook.com>, is the 6™ most trafficked website on the Internet. As a result of at least 3 years

of extensive advertising and use of the FACEBOOK Name and Marks in connection with the



FACEBOOK Services, the FACEBOOK Name and Marks have acquired extensive goodwill,
and have come to be immediately identified as the source of the FACEROOK Services.

8. The FACEROCK Name and Marks are famous. The FACEBOCK Name and
Marks are recognized by virtually every consumer familiar with the online social netwérking
industry in the United States and throughout much of the rost of the worid.

9, Opposer’s rights in the FACEBOOK Name and Marks are further evidenced by
its ownership of numerous United States Trademark registrations and applications, including the
following: U.S. Registration No. 3041791; U.S. Registration No. 3122052; U.S. Application
Serial No. 78920322; U.S. Application Serial No. 78962629; U.S. Application Serial No.
77125103; U.S. Application Serial No. 77039123, and U.S. Application Seriat No. 77189479, ail
for the mark FACEBOOCK.

The registrations listed above are in full force and effect

10.  There is no issue as to pricrity. Opposer filed for and obtained its FACEBOOK.
registrations prior to the April 20, 2006 filing date of Applicant’s FACEMAITL application,
which is the subject of this proceeding. Further, Opposer’s iirst use of the FACEBCOK Name
and Marks predates the April 20, 2006 filing date of Applicant’s FACEMAIL application, which
is the subject of this proceeding. FACEBOOK has been usmng the trademark FACEBOOK as a
service mark and trade name for its services since 2004.

11.  The Proposed Mark is confusingly similar to Opposer’s FACEBOOK Name and
Marks when used in connection with Applicant’s services, as identified in Serial No. 76/658,836.
Thus, Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception in
the minds of prospeciive purchasers as to the origin, source, sponsor.«ﬁp or association of
Applicani’s services, thereby causing loss, damags and injury to Opposer.

12.  Consumers familiar with the FACEBOOK Name and Marks are likely to
mistakenly believe that Applicant's services are sponsored, authorized, associated with or
otherwise approved by Opposer dus to the confusing similarity between the Proposed Mark and

Opposer’s FACEBOOK Name and Marks. Deficiencies or faults in the quality of Applicant’s
3



services are likely to reflect negatively upon, tarnish, and seriously injure the reputation which
Opposer has established for sexvices marketed under the FACEBOOK Name and Marks. This
confusion is likely to result in loss of revenues to Opposer and damage to Opposer’s reputation.

13.  Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark does or is ikely to falsely suggest a
relationship between Applicant’s services and Opposer's services. Such use of the Proposed
Mark is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception with respect to the source or spbnsorship
of Applicant’s sewices. Such use is likely to cause an increase in sales by Applicant due to
consumers’ mistaken betief that Oppeser is the source or sponsor of Applicant’s services,
resulling in ill-gotten gains by Applicant. Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark is mérefore
tikely to result in Applicant’s trading off and benefiting from the goodwill associated with

‘Opposer, resulting in ill-gotten gains by Applicant.

14.  For the foregoing reasons, the re gistration sought by Applicant is contrary to the
provisions of Section 2 of the Lanham Act, and Opposet would be damaged thereby.

15.  Inthe uniikely event that any conSumers Iﬁay not be confused into believing that
Applicant’s services originate from or are related to those of Opposer, Applicant’s use of the
Proposed Mark would diminish the distinctive quality of Opposer’s famous FACEBOCK Name
and Marks as they relate 1o the FACEBOOK Services, thereby causing dilution of Opposer’s
famous FACEBOOK Name and Marks in violation of Lanham Act Section 43, and in violation
of Opposer’s rights under state dilution and unfair competition law. As a result, the ability of
Opposer’s FACEBOOK Name and Marks to identify Opposer’s FACEBOOK Services is
weakened, thereby causing loss, damage and injury to Opposer.

16.  For the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is contrary to the
provisions of Sectiop 43 of the Lanham Act, and Opposer would be damaged thereby.

17.  Inorderto protect the public against confusion and deceit, and to protect

Opposer’s famous marks from nfringement, dilution, and unfair competition, the Proposed Mark

must not be registered.

WHEREFORE, Opposer respectfidly prays for the following:
4



a.  afinding that FACEBOOK has priority as to Applicant’s application to
register the FACEMAIL mark in connection with website message and social introduction

services,

b. a finding that Applicant's proposed FACEMAIL mark is likely to cause
confusion with FACEBOOK's family of FACEBOQOK marks;

c. a finding that Applicént‘s proposed FACEMAIL mark dilutes
FACEBOOK's family of FACEBOOK marks; and

d. that the opposition be sustained and Application Serial No. 7 6/658,836

and the mark therein sought for the services identified therein be dented and refused.

This Notice is submitted electronically, together with the requisite $300 ﬁliﬁg fee. Please

charge any additional fees required to our Deposit Account No. 08-1645 (Cur Reference No.

41446-5000) as necessary.

Dated: September /D= 2007 Respectiully submitted,

Harold J. Milstein

Thayer M. Presce

275 Middlefield Road

Menlo Park, California 94025
(650) 324-7137

(650) 324-0638 (fax)

| Attorneys for Opposer
FACEBOOK, Inc.

SV 2302395 vi
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

In the matter of Application Serial No. 78/839,940
Filed on March 17, 2006

For the mark BLACKFACES

Published in the Official Gazette on May 15, 2007

Facebook, Inc., Opposition No.:
Opposer,

v. NOTICE OF DPPOSITION

Spartan Brands Inc.,

Applicant.

Opposer Facebook, Inc. ("Opposer” or "Facebook™), a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, believes that it will be damaged by registration of the
mark shown in Application Serial No. 78/839,940 and hereby opposes that application, alleging
as grounds for its opposition that:

1. Opposer has obtained the necessary extensions of time in which to oppose the
challenged trademark following publication on May 15, 2007 in the Official Gazette.

2. As is evidenced by the publication of the BLACKFACES mark in the May 13,
2007 Official Gazetie, Applicant Spartan Brands, Inc. (“Applicant”) seeks to register the mark
BLACKFACES (the “Proposed Mark™) as a trademark in International Class 38 for "Providing
website message boards in the field of cominunication for‘the purposes of introduction of
individuals," and International Class 45 for “Providing on-line social introduction services for
individuals.” Applicant is, upon information and belief, a New York Corporation having its
principal. place of business at Suite 601, 220 East 23rd Street, New York, NY 10016. Applicant

has filed on an intent-fo-use basis.



3. Starting more than three years ago, and continuously since then, the FACEBOOK
trade name and trademnark have been used in interstate and international commerce in connection
with a wide range of goods and services, including but not limited to, “providing online chat
rooms for registered users for transmission of messages concerning collegiate life, classifieds,
virtual community and social networking” in Class 38 and “providing an online directory
information service featuring information regarding, and in the nature of, collegiate life,
classifieds, virtual community and social networking” in Class 35. We refer to the foregoing
services collectively as “the FACEBOOK Services.”

4, All of the FACEBOOK Services have been or are being advertised, promoted,
marketed, offered and rendered in connection with Opposer’s well known FACEBOOK name,
trademarks and service marks. We refer to this family of trademarks and service marks and to
Opposer’s trade name collectively as the “FACEBOOK Name and Marks.”

5. The FACEBOOK Name and Marks have been continuously and widely used,
advertised, promoted, marketed, offered and rendered in connection with the FACEBOOK
Services for at least 3 years. The well-known use of the FACEBCGOK mark in commerce, in
connection with various of the FACEBOOK Services, began at least as early as 2004, rand has
been confinuous and uninterrupted ever since then.

6. The FACEBCOK. Name and Marks have been the subject of extensive advertising
campaigns and the content of endless articles in technology and general media publications over
the past 3 years. These advertisements and print publications have been distributed to major
markets throughout the world.

7. The level of fame and consumer recognition of the FACEBOOK Name and
Marks cannot be disputed. Opposer currently has over 40 million active users, and currently
processes 200,000 new registrations for Opposer’s services per day. Opposer’s website,
<Facebook.com>, is the 6™ most trafficked website on the Internet. Asa result of at least 3 years
of extensive advertising and use of the FACEBOOK Name and Marks in connection with online

social networking services, the FACEBOOK Name and Marks have acquired extensive
2



goodwill, and have come to be immediately identified as the source of the FACEBOOK
Services.

8. The FACEBOOK Name and Marks are famous. The FACEBOOK Name and
Marks are recognized by virtually every consumer familiar with the online social networking
industry in the United States and throughout much of the rest of the world.

9. Opposer’s tights in the FACEBOCK. Name and Marks are further evidenced by
its ownership of numerous United States deemﬁk registrations and applications, including the
following: U.S. Registration No. 3041791; U.S. Registration No. 3122052; U.S. Application
Serial No. 78920322; U.S. Application Serial No. 78962629; U.S. Application Serial No.
77125103; U.S. Application Serial No. 77039123; and U.S. Application Serial No. 77189479, all
for the mark FACEBOOK.

The registrations listed above are in full force and effect

10.  There is no issue as to priority. Opposer filed for and obtained its FACEBOOK
registrations prior to the March 17, 2006 filing date of Applicant’s BLACKFACES application,
which is the subject of this proceeding. Further, Opposer’s first use of the FACEBOOK Name
and Marks predates the March 17, 2006 filing date of Applicant’s BLACKFACES application,
which is the subject of this proceeding. FACEBOOK has been using the trademark
FACEBOOK as a service mark and trade name for its services since 2004,

| 11.  The Proposed Mark is confusingly similar to Opposer’s FACEBOOK Name and
Marks when used in connection with Applicant’s services, as identified in Serial No. 78/839,940.
Thus, Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception in
the minds of prospective purchasers as to the origin, source, sponsorship or association of
Applicant’s services, thereby causing loss, damage and mjury to Opposer.

12.  Consumers familiar with the FACEBOOK Name and Marks are likely to
mistakenly believe that Applicant's services are sponsored, authorized, associated with or
otherwise approved by Opposer due to the confusing similarity between the Proposed Mark and

Opposer’s FACEBOCK Name and Marks. Deficiencies or faults i the quality of Applicant’s
3



social introduction services are likely to reflect negatively upon, tarnish, and seniously injure the
reputation which Opposer has established for services marketed under the FACEBOCK Name
and Marks. This confusion is likely to result in loss of revenues to Opposer and damage to
Opposer’s reputation.

13.  Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark does or is likely to falsely suggest a
relationship between Applicant’s social introduction services and Opposer's services. Such use
of the Proposed Mark is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception with respect to the
source or sponsorship of Applicant’s social introduétion services. Such use is likely to cause an
increase in sales by Applicant due to consumers’ mistaken belief that Opposer is the source or
sponsor of Applicant’s services, resulting in ill-gotten gains by Applicant. Applicant’s use of the
Proposed Mark is therefore likely to result in Applicant’s trading off and benefiting from the
goodwill associaied with Opposer, resulting in ill-gotten gains by Applicant.

14, For the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is contrary to the
provisions of Section 2 of the Lanham'Act, and Opposer would be damaged thereby.

15.  Inthe unlikely event that any consumers may not be confused into believing that
Applicant’s services originate from or are related to those of Opposer, Applicant’s use of the
Proposed Mark would diminish the distinctive quality of Opposer’s famous FACEBOOK Name
and Marks as they relate to the FACEBOOK Services, thereby causing dilution of Opposer’s
famous FACEBOOK Name and Marks in violation of Lanham Act Section 43(a), and in
violation of Opposer’s rights under state dilution and unfair competition law. As a result, the
ability of Opposer’s FACEBOGK. Name and Marks to identify Opposer’s FACEBOOK Services
is weakened, thereby causing loss, damage and injury to Opposer.

16. For the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is confrary to the
provisiong of Section 43 of the Lanham Act, and Opposer would be damaged thereby.

17.  In order to protect the public against confusion and decett, and to protect
Opposer’s famous marks from infringement, dilution, and unfair competition, the Proposed Mark

must not be registered.



WHEREFORE, Opposer respectfully prays for the following:
a a finding that FACEBOOK has priority as to Applicant’s application to

register the BLACKFACES mark in connection with website message and social introduction
services;

b. a finding that Applicant's proposed BLACKFACES mark is likely to
canse confusion with FACEBOOK s family of FACEBOOK marks;

c. a finding that Applicant’s proposed BLACKFACES mark dilutes
FACEBOOK s family of FACEBOOK marks; and

d. that the opposition be sustained and Application Serial No. 78/839,940

and the mark therein sought for the services identified therein be denied and refused.

This Notice is submitted electronically, together with the requisite $300 filing fee. Please
charge any additional fees required to our Deposit Account No. 08-1645 (Our Reference No.

41446-5000) as necessary.

Dated: September _{?_’j 2007 Respectfully submitted,

HELLER EHRMAN LLP

o Hahtd Al

Harold J. Milstemn

Thayer M. Preece

275 Middlefield Road

Menlo Park, California 94025
(650) 324-7137

(650) 324-0638 (fax)

Attorneys for Opposer
FACEBOQOK,, Inc.

SV 2301844 v2
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

In the matter of Application Serial No. 77/031,782
Filed on October 29, 2006

For the mark DWC FACES

Published in the Official Guzerte on May 22, 2007

Facebook, Inc., Opposition No.:

Opposer,
v. NOTICE OF OPPOSITION

Diane K. Danielson,

Applicant.

Opposer Facebook, inc. {"QOpposer” or "Facebook"), a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of t}xe State of Delaware, believes that it will be damaged by registration of the
mark shown in Application Serial No. 77/031,782 and hereby opposes that application, alleging
as grounds for its opposition that: '

1. Opposer has obtained the necessary cxtensions of time in which to oppose the
challenged trademark following publication on May 22, 2007 in the Gfficial Gazette.

2. As is evidenced by the publication of the DWC FACES mark in the May 22, 2007
Official Gazette, Applicant Diane K. Danielson (“Applicant”) seeks to register the mark DWC
FACES (the “Proposed Mark™) as a trademark in Interpational Class 35 for "providing an on-lhne
commercial information directory on the internet.” Applicant is, upon information and belief, an
individual having her principal place of business at 756 Jerusalem Road #5, Cohasset, MA
02025. Applicant has claimed April 1, 2006 as the date of first use of the Proposed Mark.

3. Starting more than three years ago, and continucusly since then, the FACERCCK

irade name and trademark have been used in interstate and international commerce in connection

with a wide range of goods and services, including but not limited to, “providing online chat



rooms for registered users for transmission of messages concerning collegiate life, classifieds,
virtual community and social networking” in Class 38 and “providing an online directory
information service featuring information regarding, and in the nafure of, collegiate life,
classificds, virtual community and social networking” in Class 35. We refer to the foregoing
services collectively as “the FACEBOOK Services.”

4, All of the FACEBOOK Services have been or are being advertised, promoted,
marketed, offered and rendered in connection with Oppeser’s well known FACEBOOK name,
trademarks and service marks. We refer to this family of trademarks and service marks and o
Opposer’s trade name collectively as the “F ACEROOK Name and Marks.”

A. The FACEBCOK Name and Marks have been continuously and widely used,
advertised, promoted, marketed, offered and rendered in connection with the FACEBOOK
Services for at least 3 vears. The well-known use of the FACEBOOK mark in commerce, in
commection with various of the FACEBOOK Services, began at least as early as 2004, and has
been continuous and uninterrupted ever since then.

6. The FACEBOCK Name and Marks have been the subject of extensive advertising
campaigns and the content of endless articles in technology and general media publications over
the past 3 years. These advertisements and print publications have been distributed 1o niaj or
markets throughout the world.

7. The level of fame and consumer recoguition of the FACEBOOK Name and
Marks cannot be disputed. Opposer currently has over 40 million active users, and currently
processes 200,000 new registrations for Opposer’s services per day. Opposer’s website,
<Facebook.com>, is the &% mast trafficked website on the Internet. As a result of at least 3 years
of extensive advertising and use of the FACEBOOK Name and Marks in connection with the
FACEBOOK Services, the FACEBOCK Name and Marks have acquired extensive goodwill,

and have come to be immediately identified as the source of the FACEBOOK Services.



8. The FACEBOOK Name and Marks are famous. The FACEBOOK Name and
Marks e;re recognized by virtually every consumer familiar with the oniine social networking
industry in the United States and throughout much of the rest of the world.

9. Opposer’s rights in the FACEBOOK Name and Marks are further evidenced by
its ownership of numerous United States Trademark registrations and applications, including the
following: U.S. Registration No. 3041791; U.S. Registration No. 3122052; U.S. Application-
Serial No. 78920322; U.S. Application Serial No. 78962629; U.S. Application Seral No.
77125103; U.S. Application Serial No. 77039123; and U.S. Apptlication Serial No. 771 89479, all
for the mark FACEBGOK.

The registrations listed above are in full force and effect

10.  There is no issue as to priority. Opposer filed for and obtained its FACEBCOK
registrations prior to the April 1, 2006 first use date of Applicant’s DWC FACES application,
which is the subject of this procecding. Further, Opposer’s first use of the FACEBCOK. Name
and Marks predates the April 1, 2006 first use date of Applicant’s DWC FACES application,
which is the subject of this proceeding. FACEBOOK has been using the trademark |
FACEBOOK as 2 service mark and trade name for its services since 2004.

11.  The Proposed Mark is confusingly similar to Opposer’s FACEBOOK Name and
Marks when used in commection with Applicant’s services, as identified in Serial No. T7/031,782.
Thus, Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark 1s likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception in
the minds of prospective purchasers as to the origin, source, sponsorship or associaticn of
Applicant’s services, thereby causing loss, damage and injury to Opposer.

12. Consumers familiar with the FACEBOOK Name and Marks are likely to
mistakenly believe that Applicant's services are sponsored, authorized, associated with or
otherwise approved by Opposer due to the confusing similarity between the Proposed Mark and
Opposer’s FACEBOOK Name and Marks. Deﬂcicnciés or faults in the quality of Applicant’s

services are likely fo reflect negatively upon, tarnish, and seriously injure the reputation which



Opposer has established for services marketed under the FACEBOOK Name and Marks. This
confusion is likely to result in less of revenues to Opposer and damage to Opposer’s reputation.

13.  Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark does oris likely to falsely suggest a
relationship between Applicant’s services and Opposer's services. Such use of the Proposed
Mark is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception with respect to the source or sponsorship
of Applicant’s services. Such use is likely to cause an increase in sales by Applicant due to
consumers’ mistaken belief that Opposer is the source or sponsor of Applicant’s services,
resulting in ill-gotten pains by Applicant. Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark is therefore
likely to result in Applicant’s trading off and benefiiing from the goodwill associated with
Opposer, resulting in ill-gotien gains by Appiicant.

14. For the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is céntrary to the
provisions of Secticn 2 of the Lanham Act, and Opposer would.be damaged thereby.

15.  Inthe uniikely event that any consumers may not be confused into believing that
Applicant’s services origingte from or are related to those of Opposer, Applicant’s use of the
Proposed Mark wonld dimimsh the distinctive guality of Opposer’s famous FACEBOOK Name
and Marks as they relate to the FACEBOOK Services, thereby causing dilution of Opposer’s’
famous FACEBOOK Name and Marks in violation of Lanham Act Section 43, and in violation
of Opposer’s rights under state dilution and unfair competition law. As a result, the ability of
Opposer’s FACEBOOK Name and Marks to identify Opposer’s FACEBOOK Services is
weakened, thereby causing loss, damage and imgury to Opposer.

16.  For the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is contrary to the
provisions of Section 43 of the Lanham Act, and Opposer would be damaged thereby.

17.  Tnorderto protect the public against confusion and deceit, and to protect
Opposer’s famous marks from inf}:iﬁgement, dilation, and unfair competition, the Proposed Mark
must not be registered.

WHEREFORE, Opposer respectfully prays for the following:

4



a. a finding that FACEBOOK has priority as to Applicant’s application to
register the DWC FACES mark in connection with online information directory services;
b, a finding that Applicant's proposed DWC FACES mark is likely to cause
confusion with FACEBOOK's family of FACEBOOK marks;
c. e finding that Applicant's proposed DWC FACES mark dilutes
FACEBQOK's family of FACEBQOK marks; and
d. that the opposition be sustained and Application Serial No. 77/031,782

and the mark therein sought for the services identified therein be denied and refused.

This Notice is submitted electronically, together with the requisite $300 filing fee. Please
charge any additional fees required to our Depﬁs;’t Account No. 08-1645 (Our Reference No.

41446-5000) as necessary.

Dated: September |9, 2007 Respectfully subrmitted,

By:

Harold J. Milstein

Thayer M. Presce

275 Middleficld Road

Menlo Park, California 94025
(650) 324-7137

{650) 324-0638 (fax)

Attorneys for Opposer
FACEBOQK, Inc.

8V 2299518 vl
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE

BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAI, AND APPEAL BOARD

In the matter of Application Serial No. 77/030,944
Filed on October 27, 2006

For the mark FACEPLACE@ORU

Published in the Official Gazette on May 29, 2007

Facebook, Inc., Opposition No.:

Cpposer,
v. NOTICE OF OPPOSITION

Oral Roberts University,

Applicant.

Opposer Facebook, Inc. ("Opposer” or "Facebook"), 4 corporation organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, believes that it will be damaged by
regisiration of the mark shown in Application Serial No. 77/030,944 and hereby opposes
that application, alleging as grounds for its opposition that:

1. Opposer has obtained the necessary extensions of time in which to oppose
the challenged trademark following publication on May 29, 2007 in the Official Gazette.

2. As is evidenced by the publication of the FACEPLACE@ORU mark in the
May 29, 2007 Official Gazeite, Applicant Oral Roberts University (“Applicant”) seeks to
register the mark FACEPLACE@ORU (the “Proposed Mark™) as a trademark in
Intemaﬁonal Class 42 for "Computer Services, Namely, Hosting Online Web Facilities
For Others For Organizing And Conducting Online Meetings, Gatherings, And
Tnteractive Discussions; And Computer Services In The Nature Of Customized Web
Pages Featuring User-Defined Information, Personal Profiles And Information.”

Applicant is, upon information and belief, an Oklahoma Non-Profit Corporation having



its principal place of business at 7777 South Lewis Avenue, Tulsa, OK, 74114.
Applicant has claimed a date of first use of May 2006.

3. Starting more than three years ago, and continuously since then, the
FACEBOOK trade name and trademark have been used in interstate and international
commerce in connection with a wide range of goods and services, including but not
limited to, “providing online chat rooms for registered users for transmission of messages
concerning collegiate life, classifieds, virtual community and social networking” in Class
38 and “providing an online directory information service featuring mformation
regarding, and in the nature of, coilegiate life, classifieds, virtual community and social
networking” in Class 35. We refer to the foregoing services collectively as “the
FACEBQOK Services.” |

4, All of the FACEBOOK. Services have been or are being advertised,
promoted, marketed, offered and rendered in connection with Opposer’s well known
FACEBOOK name, trademarks and service marks. We refer to this famly of trademarks
and service marks and to Opposer’s frade name collhectively as the “FACEBOOK Name
and Marks.” '

5. The FACEBOOK Name and Marks have been continuously and widely
used, advertised, promoted, marketed, offered aﬁd rendered in connection with the
FACEBOOK Services for at least 3 years. The well-known use of the FACEBOOK
mark in commerce, in connection with various of the FACEBOOK Services, began at
least as early as 2004, and has been continuous and uninterrupted ever since then.

0. The FACEBOOK Name and Marks have been the subject of extensive
advertising campaigns and the content of endless articles in technology and general
media publications over the past 3 years. These advertisements and print publications
have been distributed to major markeis throughout the world.

7. The level of fame and consumer recognition of the FACEBOOK Name and

Marks cannot be disputed. Opposer currently has over 40 millicn active users, and
2z



currently processes 200,000 new registrations for Opposer’s services per day. Opposer’s
website, <Facebook.com>, is the 6™ most trafficked website on the Internet. As a result
of at least 3 years of extensive advertising and use of the FACEBOOK Name and Marks
in connection with online social networking services, the FACEBOOK Name and Marks
have acquired extensive goodwill, and have come to be immediately identified as the
source of the FACEBOOK Services.

8. The FACEBOOK Name and Marks are famous. The FACEBOOK Name
and Marks are recognized by virtually every consumer familiar with the online social
networking industry in the United States and throughout much of the rest of the world.

9. Opposer’s rights in the FACEBOOK Name and Marks are further
evidenced by its ownership of numerous United States Trademark registrations and
applications, including the following: U.S. Registration Ne. 3041791; U.S. Registration
No. 3122052: U.S, Application Serial No. 78920322; U.S. Application Serial No.
78962629; U.S. Application Serial No. 77125103; U.S. Application Serial No. 77035123;
and U.S. Application Serial No. 77189479, all for the mark FACEBOGK.

The registrations listed above are in full force and effect

10.  There is no issue as to priority. Oppeoser filed for and obtained its
FACEBOCK registrations prior to the May 2006 first use date of Applicant’s
FACEPLACE@ORU application, which is the subject of this proceeding. Further,
Opposer’s first use of the FACEBGOK Name and Marks predates the May 2006 first use
date of Applicant’s FACEPLACE@ORU application, which is the subject of this
proceeding. FACEBOOK has been using the trademark FACEBOOK as a service mark
and trade name for its services since 2004,

11.  The Proposed Mark is confusingly similar to Opposer’s FACEBOOK
MName and Marks when used in connection with Applicant’s serviceé, as identified in
Serial No. 77/030,944. Thus, Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark is likely to cause

confusion, mistake or deception in the minds of prospective purchasers as to the origin,
' 3



source, sponsorship or association of Applicant’s services, thereby causing loss , damage
and injury to Opposer. |

12.  Consumers familiar with the FACEBOOK Name and Marks are likely to
nﬁsiakenly believe that Applicant’s services are éponsorcd, authorized, associated with or
otherwise approved by Opposer due to the confusing similarity between the Proposed
Mark and Opposer’s FACEBOOK Name and Marks. Deficiencies or faults in the quality
of Applicant’s social introduction services are likely to reflect negatively upon, tarnish,
and sericusly injure the reputation which Opposer has established for services marketed
under the FACEBOOK. Name and Marks. This confusion is likely to result in loss of

revenues to Opposer and damage to Opposer’s reputation.

13.  Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark does or s tikely to falsely suggest a
relationship between Applicant’s social introduction services and Opposer's services.
Such use of the Proposed Mark is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception with
respect to the source or sponsorship of Applicant’s social introduction services. Such use
is likely to cause an increase in sales by Appiicant due to consumers” mistaken belief that
Opposer is the source or sponsor of Applicant’s services, resulting in ill-gotten gains by
Applicant. Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark is therefore likely to result in |
Applicant’s trading off and benefiting from the goodwill associated with Opposer,
resulting in ill-gotten gains by Applicant.

14, Forthe foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is contrary
to the provisions of Section 2 of the Lanham Act, and Opposer would be damaged
thereby.

15.  In the unlikely event that any consumers may not be confused into
believing that Applicant’s services originate from or are related to those of Opposer,
Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark would diminish the distinctive quality of
Opposer’s famous FACEBOOK Name and Marks as they relate to the FACEBOUK

Services, thereby causing dilution of Opposer’s famous FACEBOOK Name and Marks in
4 : :



violation of Lanham Act Section 43, and in violation of Opposer’s rights under state
dilution and unfair competition law. As a result, the ability of Opposer’'s FACEBOOK.
Name and Marks to identify Opposer’s FACEBOGK Servic'es is weakened, thereby
causing loss, damage and infury to Opposer.

16.  For the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is contrary
to the provisions of Section 43 of the Lanham Act, and Opposer would be damaged
thereby.

17.  In order to protect the public against confusion and deceit, and to protect
Opposer’s famous marks from infringement, ditution, and unfair competition, the
Proposed Mark must not be registered. |

WHEREFORE, Opposer respectfully prays for the following:
a. a finding that FACEBOOK has priority as to Applicant’s application

to register the FACEPLACE@ORU mark in connection with website message and social

introduction services;

b. a finding that Apﬁlicant‘s proposed FACEPLACE@ORU mark is
likely to canse confusion with FACEBOOK's family of FACEBOOK muarks;

c. a finding that Applicant's proposed FACEPLACE@ORU mark
dilutes FACEBQOK's family of FACEBOOK marks; and

d. that the opposition be sustained and Application Serial No.
77/030,944 and the mark therein sought for the services identified therein be denied and
refused.



This Notice is submitted clectronically, together with the requisite $300 filing fee.
Please charge any additional fees required to our Deposit Account No. 08-1645 (Our
Reference No. 41446-5000) as necessary.

Dated: September?é_(, 2007 Respectfully submitted,

HELLER,EHRMAN LLP

, O b

Harold J. Milstein

Thaver M. Preece

275 Middiefield Road .

Menlo Park, California 94025
(650) 324-7137

(650} 324-0638 (fax)

Attorneys for Opposer
FACEBOOK, Inc.

SV 2304719 vt
9/25/07 3:58 PM {41446.5000)
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE

BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

in the matter of Application Serial No. 77/1398,606
Filed on March 24, 2007

For the mark DATEBOOK

Published in the Official Gazette on September 25, 2007

Facebook, Inc., | Opposition No.:

Opposer,
v. NOTICE OF OPPOSITION

Allison N. Witherspoon,

Applicant. .

- Opposer Facebook, Inc. {"Opposer" or "Facebook™), a corporation organized and existing
under the laws of the State of Delaware, believes that it will be damaged by registration of the
mark shown in Application Serial Ne. 77/139,606 and hereby opposes that appiication, alieging
as grounds for its opposition that: '

1. Opposer is acting within the mandated period of time in which to oppose the
challenged trademark following publication on September 25, 2007 in the Official Gazette.

2. As is evidenced by the publication of the DATEBOOK mark in the September 25,
2007 Official Gazette, Applicant Allison N. Witherspoon (“Applicant”) seeks to register the
mark DATEBOOK (the “Proposed Mark™) as a tradsmark in International Class 45 for "Internet
based social networking, introduction, and dating services." Applicant is, upon information and
belief, an Individual residing at 1691 Sulphur Springs Ave., Saint Helena, CA 94574, Applicant
has fﬂed on an Intent-to-Use basis. | A

3. Starting more than three years ago, and continuously since then, the FACEBGOK

trade name and trademark have been used in interstate and international commerce in connection

with a wide range of goods and services, including but not limited to, “providing online chat



rooms for registered users for transmission of messages conceming collegiate life, classifieds,
virtual community and social networking” in Class 38 and “providing an online directory
information service featuring information regarding, and in the nature of, collegiate life,
classifieds, virtual community and social networking™ in Class 35. We refer to the foregoing
services collectively as “the FACEBOOK Services,”

4, All of the FACEBOOK Services have been or are being advertised, promoted,
marketed, offered and rendered in connection with Opposer’s well known FACEBOCK name,
trademnarks and service marks. We refer to this family of trademarks and service marks and to
Opposer’s trade name collectively as the “FACEBOOK Name and Marks.”

5. The FACEBOOK Name and Marks have been continuously and widely used,
advertised, promoted, marketed, offered and rendered in conmection with the FACEBCOK
Services for at least 3 years. The well-known use of the FACEBOOK mark in commerce, in
connection with various of the FACERQOK Services, began at least as early as 2004, and has
been continuous and uninterrupted ever since then.

0. The FACEBOCK Name aﬁd Marks have been the subject of extensive advertising
campaigns and the content of endless articles in technology and general media publications over
the Ipast 3 years. These advertisements and print publications have been distributed io major
markets throughout the world.

7. The level of fame and consumer recognition of the FACEBOCK Name and
Marks cannot be disputed. Opposer currently has over 40 million active users, and currently
processes 200,000 new registrations for Opposer’s services per day. Opposer’s website,
<Facebook.com™, is the 6™ most trafficked website on the Internet. As a result of at least 3 years
of extensive advertising and use of the FACEBOOK Natne and Marks in connection with online
‘ sociél networking services, the FACEBOOK Name and Marks havé acquired extensive

goodwill, and have come to be immediately identified as the source of the FACEBOOK

Services.



8. The FACEBOOK Name and Marls are famous. The FACEBOOK Name and
Marks are recognized by virtually every consumer familiar with the onfine social networking
industry in the United States and thIoughou;c much of the rest of the world,

5. Opposer’s rights in the FACEBOOK Name and Marks are further gvidenced by
its ownership of numerous United States Trademark registrations and applications, including the
following: U.S. Registration No. 3041791; U.S. Registration No. 3122052; U.S. Application
Serial No. 78920322; U.S. Application Serial No. 78962629; U.S. Application Serial No,
77125103; U.S. Application Serial No. 77039123; and U.S. Application Serial No. 77189479, all
for the mark FACEBCOK.

The registrations listed above are in full force and effect

10.  There is no issue as to priority. Opposer filed for and obtained its FACEROOK
registrations prior to the May 2006 first use date of Applicant’s DATEBOOK applicatign, which
is the subject of this proceeding. Further, Opposer’s first use of the FACEBOOK. Name and
Marks predates the May 2000 first use date of Aﬁplicant’s DATEROOK appiication, which is
the subject of this proceeding. FACEBOOK has been using the trademark FACEBOOK as a
service mark and trade name for its services since 2004,

11.  The Proposed Mark is confusingly similar to Opposer’s FACEBOOK. Name and
Marks when used in connection with Applicant’s services, as identified in Serial No. 77/139,606.
Thus, Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception in
the minds of prospective purchasers as to the origin, source, sponsorship or association of
Applicant’s services, thefeby causing loss, damage and injury to Opposer.

12.  Consumers familiar with the FACEBQOK Name and Marks are likely to
mistakenly believe that Applicant's services are sponsored, authorized, associated with or
otherwise approved by Opposer due to the confusing similarity between the Proposed Mark and
Opposer’s FACEBOOK Name and Marks. Deficiencies or faults in the quality of Applicant’s

services are likely to reflect negatively upon, tarnish, and seriously injure the reputation which



Opposer has established for services marketed under the FACEBOOK Name and Marks. This
confusion is likely to result in loss of revenues to Opposer and damage to Opposer’s reputation.

13.  Applicant’s use of the Proposed Mark does or is likely to falsely suggest a
relationship between Applicant’s services and Opposer's services. Such use of the Proposed
Mark is likely to cause confusion, mistake or deception with respect to the source or sponsorship
of Applicant’s services. Such use is Hkely o cause an increase in sales by Applicant due fo
consumers’ mistaken belief that Opposer 1is the source or sponsor of Applicant’s services,

. resulting in ill-gotten gains by Applicant. Applicant’s use of the Propased Mark is therefore
likely to result in Applicant’s trading off and benefiting from the goodwill asseciated with
Opposer, resulting in ill-gotten gains by Applicant.

14, TFor the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is conirary to the
provisions of Section 2 of the Lanham Act, and Opposer would be damaged thereby.

15.  In the unlikely event that any consumers may not be confused into believing that
Applicant’s services originate from or are related to those of Opposer, Applicant’s use of the
Proposed Mark would diminish the distinctive guality of Opposer’s famous FACEBOOK Name
and Marks as they relate io the FACEBGOK Servi.ces, thereby causing dilution of Cpposer’s
famous FACEBQOCOK Name and Maiks in violation of Lanham Act Section 43, and m viclation
of Opposer’s rights under state dilution and unfair competition law. As a result, the ability of
Opposer’s FACEBOCK Name and Marks to identify Opposer’s FACEBOOUK Services is
weakened, thereby causing loss, damage and injury to Opposer. | 7

i6.  For the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is contrary to the
provisions of Section 43 of the Lanham Act, and‘ Opposer would be damaged T;hereby.

17.  In order to protect the public against confusion and deceit, and fo proiect
Opposer’s famous marks from infringement, dilution, and unfair competition, the Proposed Mark
must not be regisiered.

WHEREFORE, Opposer respectfully prays for the {ollowing:



a a finding that FACEBOOK has priority as to Applicant’s application to
register the DATEBOOK mark in connection with Internet based social networking,
introduction, and dating services;

b. a finding that Applicant’s proposed DATEBOQK mark is likely to cause
confusion with FACEBOOK's famity of FACEBOQK marks;

C. a finding that Applicant's proposed DATEBOOK. mark dilutes
FACEBOOK's family of FACEBOQK marks; and

d that the opposition be sustained and Appiication Serial No. 77/139,606
and the mark therein sought for the services identified therein be denied and refused.

This Notice is submitted electronicaily, together 'with the requisite $300 filing fee. Please

charge any additional fees required to our Deposit Account Ne. 08-1645 (Our Reference No.

41446-5000) as necessary.

Dated: October [, 2007 Respectfully submitted,

HELLER BHRMAN LLP<C
By: '

Harold J. Miistein

Thayer M. Preece

275 Middlefieid Road

Menlo Park, California 94025
(650) 324-7137

{65() 324-0038 {fax)

Attormmeys for Opposer
FACEBOOK, Inc.
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IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

In the matter of trademark Application Serial No. 77/359,288
Mark: FACE DIAL
Published for Opposition on May 20, 2008

Facebook, Inc.,
"Opposer,
Opposition No.
...V....
iQzone, Inc.,
Applicant.
NOTICE OF OPPOSITION

Opposer Facebook, Inc., a Delaware Corporation with a principal place of business at 151
University Avenue Palo Alto California 94301 (hereinafter referred to as “Opposer” or
“Tacebook™), believes that it will be damaged if the ahove-identified mark FACE DIAL
(Application Serial No. 77/359,288) is allowed to register.

To the best of Facebook’s knowledge, the legal name of the current owner of the
application is iQzone, Inc., a Delaware corporation with a principal place of business at 8535 E.

Hartford Drive, Suite 108 Scottsdale, Arizona 85255 (hereinafter referred to

as “Applicant” or
“1Qzone”).

The grounds for opposition are as follows:

1. Facebook has obtained the necessary extensions of time in which to oppose the
above-referenced application following publication on May 20, 2008 in the Official Gazette.

2, Applicant seeks to register the mark FACE DIAL (the “Proposed Mark™) as a
trademark for computer software for advertising and distributing classified advertising and

classified advertising space to individuals via computer and wireless networks and

telecommunications systems; computer software for providing consumer information about

OHS West:260512001.




products and services; computer software for hosting online web facilities for others for
organizing and conducting online discussions, meetings and gatherings and providing
customized web pages featuring user-defined information, personal profiles and information all
‘via computer and wireless networks and telecommunications systems in Class 9 and computer
services, namely, hosting online web facilities for others for organizing and conducting online
discussions, meetings and gatherings; computer services in the nature of providing custornized

web pages featuring user-defined information, personal profiles and user specific information in

Class 42.

3. Applicant filed for the Proposed Mark, on an infent-to-use basis, on December 26,
2007.

4. Beginning at least as early as 2004, and continuously since then, Facebock has

used its FACEBOOK trade name and trademark in interstate and international commerce in
connection with a wide range of goods and services, including but not limited to online social
networking and faciiitating online communications (“the FACEBOOK Services”).

5. The FACEBOOQK Services have been or are being promoted, offered, and
rendered in connection with Facebook’s well known FACEROOK name, trademark and service
mark (collecti\}ely, the “FACEBOOK Mark™).

é. Facebook is the owner of United States Trademark registrations, inclhuding U.S.
Registration Nos. 3,122,052 and 3,041,791 for FACEBOOK in Class 35 for providing an online
directory information service featuring information regarding, al;ld in the nature of, collegiate
life, classifieds, virtual community and social networking, and in Class 38 for providing online
chat rooms for registered users for fransmission of messages concerning collegiate life,
classifieds, virtual community and social networking, registered on July 25, 2005 and January 1,
2006 (as amended on November 14, 2006), respectively (collectively the “FACEBOOK
Registrations™). |

7. In addition, Facebook is the owner of numerous earlier-filed United States

Trademark applications, including the following: U.S. Application Serial No. 78/920,322 for
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FACEBOOK in Classes 35, 38, 42 and 45 for, among other things, promoting the goods and
services of others over the Internet, hosting of online web facilities for others for organizing and
conducting online meetings, and various other online social networking-related services, filed on
June 29, 2006; U.S. Application Serial No. 78/962,629 for FACEBOOK in Class 25 for, among
other things, various items of clothing, filed on August 29, 2006; U.S. Application Serial No.
77/125,103 for FACEBOOK in Classes 18, 20, and 21 for, among other things, various bags and
figurines, filed on March 7, 2007; U.S. Application Serial No. 77/039,123 for FACEBOOCK in
Classes 9, 38, 41 and 42 for, among other things, computer software development tools for social
networking, and various other social networking-related products and services, filed on
November 7, 2006; U.S. Application Serial No. 77/189,479 for FACEBOOK in Classes 9, 38, 41
and 42 for, among other things, software to enable uploading and sharing electronic media or
information over the Internet or other conmmunications network, and other online social
networking-related products and services, filed on May 24, 2007; U.S. Application Serial No.
77/324,177 for FACEBOOK INSIGHTS in Class 35 for, among other things, various marketing,
advertising, and promotion services, filed on November 7, 2007, U.S. Application Serial No.
77/321,801 for FACEBOOK PAGES in Classes 9,35, 38, 41 and 42 for, among other things,
promoting the goods and services of others over the Internet, software to enable uploading and
sharing electronic media or information over the Internet or other communications network,
hosting of online web facilities for others for organizing and conducting online meetings,
providing temporary use of non-downloadable software applications for postinlg and reading
classifieds, and various other online social networking-related products and services, filed oﬁ
November 5, 2007; U.S. Application Serial No. 77/321,801 for FACEBOOK BEACON in
Classes 35, 38, 41, 42 and 45 for, among other things, promoting the goods and services of
others over the Tniemet, electronic transmissicon of instant messages and data and providing
temporary use of non-downloadable software applications for classifieds, virtual community,
social networking, photo sharing, video sharing, and transmission of photographic images, filed

on November 5, 2007; and UJ.S. Application Serial No. 77/321,779 for FACEBOOK ADS in
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Classes 35, 38, 41, 42 and 45 for, among other things, promoting the goods and services of
others over the Internet, electronic transmission of instant messages and data and providing
temporary use of non-downioadable software applications for classifieds, virtual community,
social networking, photo sharing, video sharing, and transmission of photographic images, fiied
on November 5, 2007 (collectively “the FACEBOOK Applications™).

8. The FACEBOOK Mark has been continuously and widely used, promoted,
offered and rendered in conmection with the FACEBOQK Services for more than four years.
The FACEBOOK Mark has become widely recognized by the general consuming public as
signifying the source of the preeminent online social networking service in the United States.
Facebook’s millions of users cut across virtually every demographic group in the United States.
Facebook is regularly and prominently referenced and discussed in numerous media sources,
including national and local newspapers, magazines, television and radio broadcasts, and online
publications and blogs. These media sources have been and are distributed and accessed
throughout the United States, and indeed, throughout most of the world.

9. As a result of the extensive, indeed pervasive, use and promotion of the
FACEROOK Mark in connection with the FACEBOOK Services, the FACEBOOK Mark has
acquired extensive goodwill and has come to be immediately identified as the source of the
FACEBOOK Services.

10.  The FACEBOOK Mark is famous within the meaning of 15 U.S8.C. section
1125(c)(2)(A).

11.  Facebook also owns 1J.8. Application Serial No. 78/764,638 for FACE in Classes
16, 25, 35, 38, 41 and 45 for, among other things, advertising services provided via the Internet,

_short message and electronic text messaging receiving, sending and forwarding, instant
messaging services and various other online social networking-related services, filed on
December 1, 2005 (the “FACE Application”).

12.  Opposer’s FACEBOOK Mark has priority over Applicant’s application to register

FACE DIAL.
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13. Opposer’s FACEBOOK Registrations have priority over Applicant’s application
to register FACE DIAL.

14. Opposer’s FACEBOOK Applications, and its FACE Application, all have earlier
priority dates than Applicant’s application to register FACE DIAL.

15.  The mark FACE DIAL, when used in connection with Applicant’s services as
identified in application Serial No. 77/359,288, is confusingly similar to Opposer’s FACEBOOK
Mark, its FACEBOOK Registrations, its FACEBOOK Applications, and its FACE Application.

16.  Applicant’s use and registration of FACE DIAL are likely to cause confusion,
mistake or deception among consuraers as o the nature, source and origin of the services and
products offered by Applicant, or as to the affiliation, connection, or association of Applicant
with Facebook, thereby causing loss, damage and injury to Facebook.

17. For the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is contrary to the
provisions of Section 2 of the Lanham Act, and Facebook would be damaged thereby.

18. In addition, Applicant’s use and registration of the Proposed Mark will dilute
Opposer’s FACEBOOK Mark by tarnishing the FACEBOOK Mark and by blurring the
distinctiveness thereof.

19.  For the foregoing reasons, the registration sought by Applicant is further contrary
the provisions of Section 43 of the Lanham Act.and in violation of Facebook’s rights under
state dilution and unfair competition law, and Facebook would be damaged thereby.

Wherefore, Facebook prays that the Board sustain this Opposition and refuse
registration of the FACE DIAL mark.

Facebook hereby appoints the law firm of Orrick, Herrington & Sutcliff LLP,
1000 Marsh Road, Menlo Park, California 94025, telephone number (650) 614-7400, as the
address to whom all communications are to be directed and hereby appoints each of the |,
following attorneys associated with said firm, and at the same address, individually and

collectively, its atforneys, with full power of substitution and revocation, to prosecute this
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opposition proceeding and to transact all business in the United State Patent and Trademark

Office in connection therewith: Thomas H. Zellerbach and Diana Rutowski.

Dated: November 17, 2008

OHS West:260512001.

Respectiully submitted,

ORRICK, HERRINGTON & SUTCLIFFE LLP
THOMAS H. ZELLERBACH
DIANA RUTOWSKI -

[ ot

Diana M. Rutowski
1000 Marsh Road
Menlo Park, California 94025

Attorneys for Petitioner
Facebook, Inc.




IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

In the matter of trademark Application Serial No. 77/359,288
Mark: FACE DIAL
Published for Opposition on May 20, 2008

Facebook, Inc.,
Opposer,
Opposition No.
_V_
iQzone, Inc.,
Applicant.
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ hereby certify that a true and complete copy of the foregoing:

NOTICE OF OPPOSITION

has been served on by mailing said copy on iQzone, Inc., on November 17, 2008, via First Class
Mail, postage prepaid and electronic mait to:

Matthew B. Levine, Esg.
Titus, Brueckner & Berry, P.C.
8355 E. Hartford Ddve, Suite 200
Scottsdale, Arizona 83255
MLevine@tbb-law.com
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Certificate of Transmission

1 hereby certify that this correspondence is being transmitted via the Elecironic
System for Trademark Trials and Appeal (ESTTA) to: the Commissioner for
Trademarks, P.O. Bdx 1451, Alexandyia) Virginia 22313-1451.

(Name)

(Date)

IN THE UNITED STATES PATENT AND TRADEMARK OFFICE
BEFORE THE TRADEMARK TRIAL AND APPEAL BOARD

In the matter of application Serial No. 77/425457
For the Trademark SUPER WALL
Published in the Official Gazette on July 22, 2008

FACEBOQK, INC., )
)
Opposer, )
) Opposition No.
Y. )
)
ROCKYOU, Inc., )
)
Applicant. )
)
NOTICE OF GPPOSITION

Opposer Facebook, Inc.. (“Facebook™), a Delaware corporation having its principal place
of business at 156 University Avenue, Palo Alto, CA 94301, believes that it wilt be damaged by
the issuance of a registration for the Ir;ark SUPER WALL, as applied for in AppHcation Serial
No. 77/425457 filed on March 18, 2008 by Applicant RockYou, Inc. (“Applicant”), a Delaware

Corporation, with a mailing address at 585 Broadway Street, Redwood City, CA 94063.



As grounds for opposition, Facebook alleges that:

1. Facebook, is the world’rs leading provider of online social netwosking services.
indeed, Facebook.com has been recognized as among the top 5 most-trafficked websites of any
kind in the world. The Facebook websiie site allows computer users to communicate with
existing friends, make new friends, organize groups and events and share their personal profiles,
status, activities, photos, links and videos and create online communities of users with shared
interests and connections. Facebook currently has over 150 million active users worldwide.

2. Facebook provides tools for each of its users to create a personal web page
(“Profile Page”) on which the user can choose to display personal information such as education
or professional background, favorite music, books, or television shows, pelitical leamngs, and
contact information.

3. Facebook also provides on each Profile Page means through which other users
can communicate with each other, including online chat and private messages that are sent
directly to users’ inboxes, similar to e-mail. A third method of communication allows Facebook
users to leave items such as textual messages, links, photographs, or video on a user’s Profile
page that are visibie to any user with access to that user’s Profile Page. Facebook offers these

and other services under the “WALL” mark.

FACEBOOK'S MARKS
4, Facebook is the owner of pending U.S. Application Serial No. 78/920335 for the
mark THE WALL, which was filed on June 29, 2006 in International Classes 35 (providing an
online directory information service featuring information regarding, and in the nature of,
collegiate life, general interest, classifieds, virtual community, social networking, photo shanng,

and transmission of photographic images; advertising and information distribution services,

]



namely, providing classified advertising space via the global computer network; promoting the
goods and services of others over the Internet), 38 (providing online chat rooms and electronic
bulletin boards for regisiered users for transmission of messages conceming collegiate life,
general interest, classifieds, virtual community, social networking, photo sharing, and
transmission of photographic images), 42 (computer services, namely, hosting online web
facilities for others for organizing and conducting online meetings, gatherings, and interactive
discussions; and computer services in the nature of customized web pages featuring user-defined
information, personal profiles and information) and 45 (internet based introduction and social
networking services).

5. In addition, Facebook owns common law rights in the WALL mark, which has
been continuously, prominently, and conspicuously in use on its website and ;)ther materials in
interstate commerce in the United States, in connection with its services since well prior to
Applicant’s alleged first use of the opposed mark. All of Facebook’s marks that consist of or
incorporate the term WALL will hereafter be referred to as the “WALL Marks.”

6. The WALL Marks are suggestive marks, and thus inherently distinctive. The
terms THE WALL and WALL have no descriptive meaning as applied to social networking
services or any of the other goods and services covered by Facebook’s application or in

connection with which Facebook uses the WALL Marks.

APPLICANT’S USE OF THE SUPER WALL NAME AND MARK
7. Applicant filed Application Serial No. 77/425457 for SUPER WALL (“SUPER

WALL Application™) on March 18, 2008, for use with “non-downloadable application software

for public display of messages, digital images, graphics, video, photographs and music” alleging

(¥8)



a first use date of June 18, 2007. This application was published in the Official Gazette on July
22, 2008.

8. The SUPER WAIL Application disclaims the exclusive right to use the
descriptive term “super” apart from the mark as shown, leaving only “wall” as the source
indicating portion of the mark.

9. Applicant uses its SUPER WALL mark in connection with an application on
Facebook's website and advertises it as “the best way to find and share entertaining videos,
pictures, graffiti, and more with your friends.” See webpage for Super Wall Application, at

hitp://www. facebook.com/apps/application. php?id=2601240224, attached as Exhibit A.

10.  Based on the overwhelming similarity between Facebook’s online services
offered under the WALL Marks, and Applicant’s online services offered under the SUPER
WALL mark, it is apparent that Applicant intended the description of services recited in
Applicant’s SUPER WALL application to cover services that are the same as or related to those
offered by Facebook in connection with the WALL Marks. These similarities are strengthened
by online reviews which directly compare the functionality offered by Applicant and Facebook
under their tespective marks. See “The War and Art of the Wall,” FaceReviews, at

hitp://facereviews.com/2007/07/3 1 /the-war-and-art-of-the-wall/, attached as Exhibit B.

1i.  The mark Applicant proposed to register, SUPER WALL, is substantially similar
to the WALL Marks. The term “super” is descriptive of Applicant’s goods, as intended to be an
improved version of the Facebook WALL service, and thus does lifile to create a unique
commercial impression. Indeed, Applicant was required to disclaim the “super” portion of ils
mark, In contrast with the weak “super” prefix of Applicant’s SUPER WALL Mark, the term

“wall” in SUPER WALL appropriates the entirety of the WALL Marks, and is suggestive as



applied to Applicant’s services. By combining the generic or descriptive term SUPER with the
suggestive term WALL, Applicant has created a mark which calls to mind Facebook’s WALL
marks and suggests an improved version of Facebook’s Wall service.

12. Applicant’s alterations to the WALL Marks, therefore, merely emphasize the
similarity to Facebook’s well-known WALL Marks, and thereby create a likelihood of confusion
and dilute the distinctiveness of the WALL Marks.

13.  There is no issue as to priority of use. Facebock began using its WALL Marks
well prior to Applicant’s alleged June 18, 2007 date of first use.

_GROUND FOR OPPOSITION:
LIKELIHOOD OF CONFUSION

14. Facebook incorporates by reference paragraphs 1 through 13, inclusive, as if fully
set forth herem.

15. Applicant’s SUPER WALL Mark is confusingly similar to Facebook’s WALL
Marks in appearance, sound, meaning, and commercial impression,

16.  The services described in the SUPER WALL Application are the same as or
closely related to the services offered by Facebook under the WALL Marks and identified in
THE WALL Application.

17.  The types of services identified in the SUPER WALL Application and the types
of services offered by Facebook under the WALL Marks are normally offered through the same
channels of trade and specifically, here, are currently both offcred on Facebook’s website.

18. On information and belief, based upon Applicani’s,own representation on 1ts
website that the service it provides on Facebook under the SUPER WALL mark 15 a2 Wall

“upgrade,” Applicant filed the SUPER WALL Application with knowledge of Facebook and the



WALL Marks. See RockYou website at http:f’/www.rockvou.com/com/facebook/dev.nhp,

attached as Exhibit C.

19.  Accordingly, registration of the SUPER WALL Mark will damage Facebook
because the SUPER WALL Mark is likely, when used in connection with the services described
in the SUPER WALL Application, to cause confusion, or to cause mistake or to deceive. Thus
the SUPER WALL Mark is unregistrable under Sections 2(d) and 3 of the Trademark Act, as
amended, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1052({1} and 1033, and should be refused registration.

20.  Wherefore, Facebook prays that this Opposition be sustained, and that

Application Serial No. 76/028,574 be refused.

Respectfully submitted,

COOLEY GODWARD KRONISH LLP

N0
Date: January 20,2009 By: J%ﬂ Wkﬁk

Anne H. Peck
Aftorneys for Opposer




